
 
page 1 of 5 

  
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SAFETY MINUTES  
January 30, 2007 

 
 
Subject to approval at the February 6, 2007, Board of Works meeting. 
 
 
The Board of Public Works and Safety of the City of West Lafayette, Indiana met in regular session 
in the Board of Works Room at City Hall on January 30, 2007, at 11:00 a.m.  Present were Gilbert 
T. Satterly and Mayor Mills, who presided.  Janet L. Broyles was absent. 
 
Bid Opening:  2007 Sanitation Packer – Sanitation 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes opened four bids for a 2007 sanitation packer.  
 
Mayor Mills read the bids aloud: 
Bidder Bid Amount Model 
Link Environmental Equipment, Inc. $175,640.00 2007 Peterbilt 320 King Cobra. 
 $165,725.00 2007 Condor 25RL King Cobra. 
Best Equipment Co., Inc. $162,630.00 LoadMaster rear loader mounted on a 

2007 Sterling Condor. 
 $172,433.00 Leach rear loader mounted on a 2007 

Sterling Condor. 
Team Cruiser Conversion Company $169,715.00 2007 Sterling Condor with Heil refuse 

body with 2004 Federal Emissions. 
If 2008 model with 2007 Federal 
Emissions based on order date, add 
$8,500.00. 

McNeilus Truck and Manufacturing Co. $166,423.00 Rear load HD 25 yard. 
 $174,716.00 Rear load heavy duty. 

 
Public Works Director Downey said I recommend we take them under advisement, please. 
 
Mayor Mills said okay.  Gentlemen, thank you very much for your bids, and safe travels. 
 
SRF Disbursement Request No. 37: Greeley and Hansen, LLC – Construction Inspection Services 
for Western Interceptor-Division I – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said I have two SRF Disbursement Requests for the Board to pass 
and for the Mayor to sign.  One is to Greeley and Hansen for $18,119, and the other one’s for 
Wessler & Associates for $68,000, and that one’s on the digesters.  Greeley and Hansen is on the 
Western Interceptor. 
 
Mr. Satterly said I move that we approve the SRF Disbursement Request No. 37 on CS18240001 
loan number.  It’s to Greeley and Hansen on the Western Sanitary Sewer Interceptor-Division I, in 
the amount of $18,119.  Motion was seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
SRF Disbursement Request No. 83: Wessler & Associates – Engineering Services for Digester 
Renovation – WWTU 
Mr. Satterly said this is an SRF Disbursement No. 83 on the SRF loan number CS1807501, and it’s 
to Wessler & Associates for engineering services for the 2006 bond on digester renovation in the 
amount of $68,000.  Motion was seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
 
 

Internet
Text Box
  Approved at the February 6, 2007, Board of Works meeting.



 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 30, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 2 of 5 

Information for Board:  NPDES Phase II Best Management Practices – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said I have a printout here for the Board’s information only on best 
management practices for NPDES Phase II Programs.  I have a copy of that for you, for your 
consideration and reading.  Basically, it lays out the best management practices that we’re involved 
with under stormwater, and some of the updated costs and expenses.   
 
Information for Board: CSO Treatment Facilities Discussion Draft – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said and then I also have for your reading purposes and information 
draft discussions for CSO treatment facilities.  We had a meeting with IDEM inspector yesterday.  
We submitted our long-term control plan under an agreed order back in 2001.  It has been in 
IDEM’s hands since 2001, and they have not approved our long-term control plan, and now they 
are pushing that forward, to get that approved by September of this year.  They really didn’t have 
any direction as to what they were going to do, but now they have a 2005 draft that they will be 
adopting the Michigan plan, which basically boils down to will our collection system handle a 1.25 
inch rain in an hour in an event for one year, and then a ten-year event of 2.1 inch rain in an hour.  
So those are basically the two things that information is directed towards.  But the bottom line is that 
IDEM is looking for no CSO events in our collection system, and any community’s collection 
system.  So it makes worth some good reading and hopefully if you have questions, you can 
present them to me.   
 
Mayor Mills said I’ll just add that before this year, IDEM had only approved one long-term control 
plan in the State.  There was one community that had a long-term control plan that was approved, 
even though most people have submitted them.  And their push this year is to get through the 
majority of people’s long-term control plans, and have them approved or have them at some 
functional point.  So it’s not that we were slow.  IDEM just has not done the work to move forward, 
and they made it a priority this year to really do that.  That’s why they’re coming to visit all the cities 
and towns. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said and actually, they’ve only approved as of this year about 33 
communities, and they have about 66 to go before ’09.  But EPA has pushed IDEM to make this 
correction. 
 
Mayor Mills said pushed them very hard. 
 
Correction of Bid Acceptance for Barbarry Lift Station and Minutes of January 23, 2007 – WWTU 
Public Works Director Downey said I would also like to ask the Board to correct the minutes from 
last week.  Through confusion and error on my part, I proposed that the Board select—and so did 
Wessler & Associates select—the base bid for the Barbarry Lift Station.  I mistakenly said that we 
would select Alternate 1 for the lift station equipment.  I’d like to remove that part.  The 
recommendation from Wessler and myself correctly would be that we were accepting only the base 
bid. 
 
Mr. Satterly said okay.  I move we amend the minutes— 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said I need you to amend your bid acceptance. 
 



 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 30, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 3 of 5 

Mr. Satterly said okay.  I move we amend the bid acceptance to include only the base bid, and that 
would be of $882,465.00 with Infrastructure Systems from Orleans, Indiana, and strike off the 
Alternate 1.  Motion was seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Public Works Director Downey said I appreciate it.  That was my mistake and I apologize. 
 
Easement Encroachment: Huntington Farms Agreement to Vacate – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said I have a request to vacate a portion of an easement.  This is in Huntington 
Farms subdivision.  It’s on lot 164, between lots 164 and 165.  A house was mistakenly sited across 
a utility and drainage easement 10-foot width.  We’ve reviewed this. We have no facilities in this 
easement, and it’s only in our sanitary sewer district.  It’s not in the City limits or anything, so there 
are no other drainage issues that would be of concern to us at this point in time.  We have clarified 
the documents, so that it is only vacating that portion of the easement where the house sits, not the 
entire 10-foot easement on lot 164.  I request the— 
 
Mr. Satterly said how much encroachment is it? 
 
City Engineer Buck said I believe like four feet. 
 
Mr. Satterly said four feet into a 10. 
 
City Engineer Buck said I’m not sure who built them.  The surveyor’s the one that set it. 
 
Mr. Satterly said tell him to move it over. 
 
City Engineer Buck said we could do that, but we don’t feel that we need the easement, so we’re all 
right with vacating. 
 
Mr. Satterly said okay.  We’ll take your word for it.  Okay, so what are we going to do now? 
 
Mayor Mills said we’re going to approve the vacation of the easement. 
 
Mr. Satterly said I move we approve the vacation of four feet of the easement on lot 164 in 
Huntington Farms.  Motion was seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Bid Announcement:  2007 City Street Resurfacing Project – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said the next item I’d like to recommend for approval to the Board is the 2007 
City Street Specifications and Resurfacing Program.  We have a Notice to Bidders into the papers 
for advertisement this Friday, I believe that’s the 2nd of February, and another advertisement date of 
the 9th, and a bid opening of the 20th, I believe, of February, and would recommend this for the 
Board’s approval.  I don’t have a diagram today showing the streets.  The bid this year is fairly 
complex.  I’d like to bring that diagram and a listing of the streets next week to the Board of Works 
meeting.  We’re doing three different parts of a contract this year, where we’ll have different time 
constraints in different sections of the project all spelled out.  So I’d recommend it for the Board’s 
approval. 
 



 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 30, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 4 of 5 

Mr. Satterly said I move we approve the advertising of the 2007 City Street Program specifications 
for street resurfacing, Friday, February 2, Friday, February 9, with bid opening of February 20, 
2007.  Motion was seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Information for Board: Cumberland Avenue Reconstruction Project Update – Engineering 
City Engineer Buck said lastly, I’d just like to update the Board on the progress on Cumberland 
Avenue Reconstruction.  We had our first community planning committee meeting last week.  The 
planning committee has been formed, and there is a link on the City website to our project website 
that The Schneider Corporation is hosting, to list the different neighborhood representatives and 
everybody that’s been selected to be a part of the committee, as well as just to update information 
on the first meeting we’ve had, information that was discussed, and progress as we go through, not 
just this part of the project, but the entire construction as well.  I encourage you to take a look at it.  
We have the link on the front page of the City’s website; it’ll take you to the project website. 
 
Grant Agreement:  Indiana Finance Authority – Brownfields Site Assessment – 500 Brown Street – 
Development 
Director of Development Andrew said I’d like to notify the Board that the Mayor has entered into an 
agreement with the Indiana Finance Authority Brownfields Site Assessment Grant Agreement.  This 
is for the Burnham’s property in the amount of $7,500.00.  I need to have Judy [Clerk-Treasurer 
Rhodes] attest to the Mayor’s signature. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said it’s a grant? 
 
Director of Development Andrew said yes. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said so we’re accepting a grant? 
 
Director of Development Andrew said yes. 
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said approving the acceptance of the grant, which is for $7,500.00, and it’s 
for the 500 Brown Street— 
 
Director of Development Andrew said that’s correct.   
 
Clerk-Treasurer Rhodes said brownfields grant project? 
 
Mr. Satterly said I move we approve the Mayor signing the— 
 
City Attorney Bauman said the Brown Street brownfield. 
 
Mr. Satterly said grant for the brownfields at 500 Brown Street.  Motion was seconded by Mayor 
Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Claims 
Mayor Mills moved to approve the claims as submitted in one docket in the following amount: 

Accounts Payable $265,070.80
Motion was seconded by Mr. Satterly, and the vote was AYE. 



 
 

BOARD OF WORKS MINUTES, JANUARY 30, 2007, CONTINUED 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 5 of 5 

 
Minutes 
Mr. Satterly said I move we approve the minutes of the Board of Public Works and Safety meeting 
of January 23, 2007, as amended.  Motion was seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Adjournment 
There being no further business at this time, Mr. Satterly moved for adjournment.  Motion was 
seconded by Mayor Mills, and the vote was AYE. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
Jan H. Mills, Mayor                    Judith C. Rhodes, Clerk-Treasurer 
Presiding Officer                                    Clerk of the Board 

gail
Text Box




